
Corporate, Customer and Community Services 
Directorate

Legal and Democratic Services  Cumbria House, 107-117 Botchergate, 
Carlisle, CA1 1RD  Tel 01228 227354 

Email democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk

1

13 September 2018

To:  The Chair and Members of the Holehird 
Trust Joint Committee

Agenda
HOLEHIRD TRUST JOINT COMMITTEE

A meeting of the Holehird Trust Joint Committee will be held as follows: 

Date: Friday 21 September 2018
Time: 10.00 am
Place: Committee Room 2 - County Offices, Kendal, LA9 4RQ

Dawn Roberts
Executive Director- Corporate, Customer and Community Services

Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to:  Nicola Harrison
Direct Line: 01228 226906
Email: nicola.harrison@cumbria.gov.uk

This agenda is available on request in alternative formats

Serving the People of Cumbria

mailto:nicola.harrison@cumbria.gov.uk


2

MEMBERSHIP

Appointed by Eden Local Committee

Mr A Connell
Mr P Dew
Mr D Whipp

Appointment by South Lakeland Local Committee

Mr J Bland
Mr W Clark
Ms B Gray

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

Agenda and Reports

Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect 
prior to the meeting.  Copies will also be available at the meeting.

The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website – 
http://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=124&Year=0 

Background Papers

Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that 
contain exempt information, can be made to the Legal and Democratic Services Unit at the 
address overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday.

http://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=124&Year=0


3

A G E N D A

PART 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC

PART 1 - ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC  

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.
  

2  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item 
on the agenda which comprises

1 Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 

2 Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 
the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses.  (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 

3 Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have 
a beneficial interest) and the authority 

(a) Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and 

(b) Which has not been fully discharged. 

4 Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.  

5 Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 
the authority for a month or longer.  

6 Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge) 

(a) The landlord is the authority; and

(b) The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial interest.

7 Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where



4

(a) That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area 
of the authority; and

(b) Either – 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class.

In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of 
Conduct where these have not already been registered.

Note

A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners). 
  

3  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of any item on the agenda.
  

4  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

To receive the minutes of the previous meeting held on 26 June 2018.
  (Pages 7 - 12)

5  CUMBRIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AGREEMENT 2017-20 FINANCIAL 
STATEMENT AND DISTRIBUTIONS 2018-19

To consider a report from the Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and Community 
Services.  (Pages 13 - 24)

6  GRANT APPLICATIONS

To consider grant applications received by Cumbria Community Foundation 
  (Pages 25 - 46)

7  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting will be held on 4 December 2018.
  

PART 2 - ITEMS  CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS  



5

8  PROPERTY MATTERS

To consider a report from the Land Agent 
  (Pages 47 - 48)



This page is intentionally left blank



HOLEHIRD TRUST JOINT COMMITTEE

Minutes of a Meeting of the Holehird Trust Joint Committee held on Tuesday, 26 
June 2018 at 10.00 am at County Offices, Kendal, LA9 4RQ

PRESENT:

Mrs BC Gray (Chair)

Mr J Bland (Vice-Chair)
Mr W Clark

Mr A Connell

Officers in Attendance:-

Mr D Rawle - Senior Estates Surveyor
Miss H English
Ms E Clements
Mr M Towers
Miss J Dixon

- Democratic Services Officer
- Cumbria Community Foundation
- Savills
- Savills

PART 1 – ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE 
PRESENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

1 ELECTION OF CHAIR

RESOLVED that Ms B Gray be appointed as Chair for the forthcoming year.

Ms B Gray thereupon took on the Chair.

2 ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR

RESOLVED that Mr J Bland be appointed as Vice-Chair for the forthcoming 
year.

3 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

An apology for absence was received from Mr P Dew.

4 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Ms B Gray declared a non-pecuniary interest in Agenda Item 8- Grant Applications 
(Application- 20666b Stainton Institute) as she had supported in their application.

7

Agenda Item 4



Mr W Clark declared a non-pecuniary interest in Agenda Item 8- Grant Applications 
(Application- 20780c Blackwell Sailing) as he was involved in their application and 
had used the organisation in the past.

5 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED, that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of Item No 10– Property Matters as it contains 
exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

6 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED, that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 8 March 2018 
be noted.

7 CUMBRIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AGREEMENT

The Group considered a report by the Executive Director – Corporate, Customer 
and Community Services which identified the amounts available for distribution on 
grants and fees for the 2018-19 financial year.

The Chair suggested that an induction session be arranged for all Members of the 
Committee to better understand the Cumbria Community Foundation Agreement 
and other matters relating to the Joint Committee and it was AGREED for Officers to 
go ahead and arrange this induction meeting.

RESOLVED, that Members note the amounts available for distribution on 
grants and fees for the 2018/ 19 financial year.

 

8 GRANT APPLICATIONS

Consideration was given to a report which detailed the grant applications received 
by Cumbria Community Foundation, which included a list of applications and their 
eligibility criteria. All projects had been assessed on the Community Foundation’s 
standard procedure.

20566b - Westmorland Red Squirrel Society – funding requested to support 
volunteer costs, equipment, publicity and feed costs.

Amount requested: £2,570.99
Amount allocated: £250.00

20594a – Askham & District Community Centre- funding requested to purchase 
swimming pool equipment.

8



Amount requested: £5,132.00
Amount allocated: £2,000.00

20600 Greenbank & Castlefield Residents Association- funding requested to 
refurbish a play area.

Amount requested: £1,500.00
Amount allocated: £1,500.00

20666b Stainton Institute- funding requested for lighting costs.

Amount requested: £8,000.00
Amount allocated: £2,000.00

20695b Shap Memorial Hall- funding requested to refurbish kitchen.

Amount requested: £6,583.00
Amount allocated: £1,500.00

20698 Kendal Torchlight Procession Ltd- funding requested for health and safety 
and event management training.

Amount requested: £2,000.00
Amount allocated: £1,500.00

20745 Temple Sowerby Cricket Club- funding requested to purchase a new wicket 
mower.

Amount requested: £3,000.00
Amount allocated: £1,000.00

20773b South Lakes Foyer Residents Group- funding requested to purchase iPad’s, 
Tablets and IT equipment.

Amount requested: £2,499.00
Amount allocated: £1,500.00
20780c Blackwell Sailing- funding requested to fund one season of sailing for 
people with visual impairments.

Amount requested: £3,857.00
Amount allocated: £1,000.00

20806c Happy Hooves Riding For All- funding requested to fund equine therapy 
courses/ sessions.

Amount requested: £6,400.00
Amount allocated: £2,000.00

9



20715 Musgrave Church Field Trust- funding requested to provide educational 
visits.

Amount requested: £1,760.00
Amount allocated: £880.00

20585a Manna House (Cumbria)- funding requested to refurbish new premises.

Amount requested: £25,000.00
Amount allocated: £2,000.00

RESOLVED, that the following funding applications be approved:-

Grant No. Applicant Awarded (£)

20566b Westmorland Red Squirrel Society 250.00
20594a Askham and District Community Centre 2,000.00
20600 Greenbank and Castlefield Residents 

Association
1,500.00

20666b Stainton Institute 2,000.00
20695b Shap Memorial Hall 1,500.00
20698 Kendal Torchlight Procession LTD 1,500.00
20745 Temple Sowerby Cricket Club 1,000.00
20773b South Lakes Foyer 1,500.00
20780c Blackwell Sailing 1,000.00
20806a Happy Hooves Riding For All 2,000.00
20815 Musgrave Church Field 880.00
20585a Manna House 2000.00

9 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

It was noted that the next meeting would be held on 21 September 2018 at 10am in 
County Offices, Kendal.

10 PROPERTY MATTERS

The Land Agent and representatives from Savills presented a report which updated 
the Trustees on current property matters on the Estate, including:-

 Leonard Cheshire Disability (LCD) – Holehird House

 Lakeland Horticultural Society (LHS)

 Low Borrans East

 1 Boot Cottage

10



 Farm Rent Review

 Estate Water Supply

 Holehird Drive

The Chair thanked Officers for the detailed report.

The meeting ended at 11.40 am

11



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 3

HOLEHIRD TRUST JOINT COMMITTEE

Meeting date: 21 September 2018

From: Executive Director – Corporate, 
Customer and Community Services

Paper
No

CUMBRIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AGREEMENT 2017-20

FINANCIAL STATEMENT and DISTRIBUTIONS 2018-19

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This report wishes to identify the amounts available for distribution on 
grants and fees for the 2018-19 financial year. 

2.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1 There are no strategic planning or equality implications.

3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 Members are asked to note the amounts available for distribution on 
grants and fees for the 2018-19 financial year. 

4.0 BACKGROUND

4.1 At the meeting held on 6th March 2017 the amount made available for 
distribution on grants for each year of the current agreement with Cumbria 
Community Foundation was set at £ 40,000 with fees of £ 4,000 (10% of 
grants awarded).

4.2 In 2017-18 the amount distributed on grants was £ 40,000.

4.3 As there were no unallocated amounts for the 2017-18 financial year no 
adjustment to the amounts available for 2018-19 needs to be made.

4.4 The amount available to distribute in 2018-19 is the originally set £ 40,000 
with fees of £ 4,000.

4.5 The amounts approved for distribution on grants so far in the 2018-19 
financial year is £ 17,630 leaving £ 22,370 still available. 

13

Agenda Item 5



Page 2 of 3

5.0 OPTIONS

5.1 This is not really an options report but to note the amounts available  for 
distribution on grants and fees in the 2018-19 financial year.                                                                                                                                    

6.0 RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1 These are set out in the report.

7.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 There are no direct legal implications to this report at this stage.

8.0 CONCLUSION

8.1 To note the amounts available for distribution on grants and fees for the 
2018-19 financial year. 

David Routledge
Finance Officer (Childrens Services)
12th September 2018

APPENDICES

Financial statements for the five months ended 31.08.2018

IMPLICATIONS

Electoral Division(s): All within the former County of Westmorland

Executive Decision Yes*  

Key Decision  No*

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?   N/A*

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?  No*

  N/A*If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?

 No*Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

  N/A*Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been 
undertaken?

 No*  Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

14



Page 3 of 3

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

Holehird Trust Joint Committee, 6th March 2017, Minute No. 31

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Finance Team files containing details of grants, allocations and correspondence 
with Cumbria Community Foundation re the agreement.

Contact: David Routledge    Tel: 01228 226855
        E-Mail :  david.routledge@cumbria.gov.uk

15



This page is intentionally left blank



THE HOLEHIRD TRUST

Charity Reg No. 235345

 

Income & Expenditure Account for the five months ended 31.08.18

 Note  31.08.18 31.03.18 31.08.17

Incoming Resources

Sale of Investments 0 0 0

Rents 102,401 194,523 66,186

Insurance Claims 1,969 33,953 0

Interest on Balance 0 322 0

Total incoming Resources 104,370 228,798 66,186

Resources Expended

Building & Ground Maintenance 35,893 61,786 22,840

Other Premises Costs 14,887 22,921 7,454

Other  11,535 26,530 9,670

Grants 17,630 40,000 0

Fees 1,763 4,000 0

Total Resources Expended 81,708 155,237 39,964

Net Incoming / Outgoing( - ) Resources 22,662 73,561 26,222

Other Recognised Gains and Losses

Unrealised Gains / ( - Losses)

on Investments 2 80,503 39,175 43,300

Net Movement in Funds 103,165 112,736 69,522

Balance B/F 744,067 631,331 631,331

Balances C/F 847,232 744,067 700,853

17



This page is intentionally left blank



THE HOLEHIRD TRUST

Charity Reg No. 235345

Balance Sheet as at 31.08.18

Note 31.08.18 31.03.18 31.08.17

Fixed Assets

Tangible Fixed Assets 3 8,200,041 8,200,041 8,159,745

Investments 2 843,400 762,897 767,022

 

9,043,441 8,962,938 8,926,767

Current Assets

Debtors 4 3,849 4,314 7,918

Cash 196,733 169,362 151,641

200,582 173,676 159,559

Liabilities: due within one year 5 4,244 0 0

Net Current Assets 196,338 173,676 159,559

Net Assets 9,239,779 9,136,614 9,086,326

Represented By:

Funds and Reserves 6

Unrestricted Funds 847,232 744,067 724,725

Capital Reserve 245,514 245,514 245,484

Revaluation Reserve 8,147,033 8,147,033 8,116,117

9,239,779 9,136,614 9,086,326

 

19



This page is intentionally left blank



THE HOLEHIRD TRUST

Charity Reg No. 235345

Notes to the accounts for the five months ended 31.08.18

1 Accounting Policies

These accounts have been prepared using the accruals convention and in accordance 

with applicable accounting standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice

on Accounting by Charities.

2 Unrealised Gains on Investments

Valuation at 31.08.18 was 16,521.90 pence per COIF accumulation share.

5,104.74 units were held at this date.

£

Valuation of Holding at 31.03.18 762,897

Valuation of Holding at 31.08.18 843,400

Unrealised Gain / ( - Loss) 80,503  

In order to guard against potential reduction in valuation due to the 

EU referendum vote 843.04 units were sold on 22.06.16. This realised £ 100,000.

3 Tangible Fixed Assets

£

Valuation at 31.03.18 8,200,041

Additions for year 0

Disposals for year 0

Revaluation in year 0

Net Book Value at 31.08.18 8,200,041

4 Debtors 2018/19 2017/18

Rent Income 3,849 4,314

Cash 196,733 169,362

200,582 173,676

5 Liabilites - due within one year 2018/19 2017/18

General Creditors 4,244 0

4,244 0

6 Reserves

Unrestricted Capital Revaluation

Funds Reserve Reserve

Balance at 31.03.18 744,067 245,514 8,147,033

Movement in Year 103,165 0 0

Balance at 31.08.18 847,232 245,514 8,147,033

21



This page is intentionally left blank



THE HOLEHIRD TRUST

Schedule of Grants paid 2018-19

Organisation Application No Awarded (£) Locality

Westmorland Red Squirrel Society 20566b 250 South Lakeland

Askham & District Community Centre 20594a 2,000 Eden

Green Bank & Castlefields Residents Association 20600 1,500 South Lakeland

Stainton Institute 20666b 2,000 South Lakeland

Shap Memorial Hall 20695b 2,000 Eden

Kendal Torchlight Procession 20698 1,500 South Lakeland

Temple Sowerby Cricket Club 20745 1,000 Eden

South Lakes Foyer 20773b 1,500 South Lakeland

Blackwell Sailing 20780c 1,000 South Lakeland

Happy Hooves Riding For All 20806a 2,000 Eden

Musgrave Church Field 20815 880 Eden

Manna House 20585a 2,000 South Lakeland

17,630

23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HOLEHIRD TRUST – 21st September 2018

All of the applications are eligible geographically and have been selected on the Trusts 
charitable objectives and priorities – Older People, Disabled People, Children and Youth. 
All projects have been assessed on the Community Foundation’s standard procedure.

20924 PBC Foundation
Sustaining the Bear Facts magazine
Requested £655.52
Recommended £327.76
Priority - People with a disability
Charitable objectives - To provide the services to beneficiaries

20926 Shap Community CIO
Improvements to the old Courthouse
Requested £5,000.00
Recommended £1,500.00
Priority - All age groups
Charitable objectives - to provide the facilities for beneficiaries

20942 Kendal Windows on Art
The way I see it rural community project
Requesting £1,500.00
Recommended £1,500.00
Priority – All age groups
Charitable objectives – To provide the services to beneficiaries  

21009 Skelsmergh Bowling Club
Indoor Bowling Matts
Requesting £500.00
Recommended £500.00
Priority – Older People
Charitable objectives – To provide the services to beneficiaries.

21038 Dignity in Dementia
Dementia Care Course
Requesting £1,000.00
Recommeded £1,000.00
Priority – Older People
Charitable objectives – To provide the services to beneficiaries.

21042 High Wray Village Hall  
Kitchen improvements
Requesting £5,000.00
Recommended £1,500.00
Priority – All age groups
Charitable objectives – To provide the services to beneficiaries  

25

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust 18/19 (Groups) Application no 20924
Project cost £655.52 Amount requested £655.52
Amount 
recommended

£327.76 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation The PBC Foundation
Post Town EDINBURGH District City of Edinburgh

Grant Priority 4 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

134

Aims of the 
group

The PBC Foundation is the only UK organisation exclusively dedicated to providing support 
and information to those affected by Primary Biliary Cholangitis, an autoimmune liver 
condition with no known cause or cure. Our aims and objectives are:
• To provide PBC sufferers with accurate, up-to-date information on PBC, its
implications, and treatment, in the form of our publications, including ‘Living with PBC’,
and our website
• To provide support to all affected by PBC – including patients, their carers, concerned 
relatives, and friends – in the form of a helpline, a regular publication, regional meetings 
within PBC sufferers’ local community, and a volunteer network throughout every region of 
the UK
• To educate medical practitioners about PBC, and to raise awareness of the services
we provide, by distributing detailed information on PBC at medical events throughout the 
country, and by conducting extensive outreach work
• To support research into PBC to find a cause/cure

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

13 No. of 
approved 
grants

5 Total Amount 
Awarded

£2441.14

Project Details
Project title Sustaining The Bear Facts in Cumbria
Project detail We are requesting the amount of £655.52 from The Holehird Fund towards our quarterly 

publication, The Bear Facts. This amount will pay for the production and distribution of four 
issues per year, for two years, to our 34 registered service users in the following communities: 
Ambleside, Appleby, Bampton, Bolton, Brough, Clifton, Crook, Crosby, Middleton and 
Windermere.
It includes letters from our registered users sharing their experiences and coping strategies, 
case studies, and updates from our volunteers, which detail their local activities. It also 
includes a ‘PBC Clinic’, where medical advisors write updates on treatments, symptoms, and 
the results of medical research into finding a cause/ cure for the condition. As with all of our 
services, The Bear Facts is distributed free of charge, as we strongly believe that PBC sufferers 
should not have to pay for resources on their condition.

By equipping readers with accurate, up-to-date information about PBC, our magazine enables 
patients to better recognise and respond to their own needs, take an active role in their own 
care, deal with any negative emotions, and regain a sense of control over their lives. This will 
lead to an improved quality of life for sufferers and this will in turn have a positive, lasting 
effect on both the PBC sufferer and their support circle. Moreover, continuous feedback 
highlights the enormous difference our magazine makes in reducing the isolation felt by many 
sufferers, by fostering a sense of local community, subsequently bringing local people closer 
together.

Need The results from a recent survey demonstrated the value of The Bear Facts:
• 68.2% of people strongly agree that as a result of the Bear Facts, they now know more about 
PBC
• 55% of people strongly agree that as a result of the Bear Facts, they now feel better able to 
make informed decisions about their own wellbeing

27



• 71.3% of people strongly agree that as a result of the Bear Facts, they now feel less alone in 
having PBC

Qualitative feedback also shows the want for the publication:

‘I honestly believe that the Foundation is the only means of medical research and information 
available to those of us who have PBC’.
‘I would like to thank you very much. I can’t tell you enough how much I am grateful to you 
because I couldn’t cope without your information and support'

Disadvantage PBC patients are told that they have an incurable, debilitating liver condition: a disease that 
very few people have heard of, making it hard to grasp the implications of a diagnosis.
Seeking advice and support, they contact their GP. Sadly, medical professionals may have little 
in the way of knowledge or resources to offer regarding this condition.

Seeking support elsewhere, they might talk to friends and family but, as they have testified, 
people may associate liver disease with alcoholism. Far from supporting you, this attaches a 
stigma to their condition, causing them to draw further into their shell and become ever more 
isolated. As a result, up to one third of the PBC membership tell us that they suffer from 
depression.

The situation is made even worse by the fact that PBC is a disease with few physical signs of 
illness – sufferers may not ‘look’ ill, causing a general lack of sympathy within their local 
community, including amongst your work colleagues, employer, friends, and family.

By the time people find The PBC Foundation, they can be distraught – their whole life has 
been turned upside down. However, once a registered service user, everything changes – 
suddenly, you find yourself with a range of national, regional, and local services specifically 
designed to inform and support PBC sufferers at your disposal.

Benefits Your funding will, therefore, help PBC sufferers to:

•           feel less isolated, through increased involvement and interaction within their 
communities
•           be better able to self-manage their condition, which will lead to an improved quality of 
life
•           be better equipped to cope with discrimination against them
•           to have a better chance of living longer, healthier, lives

Measure An evaluation form will be included in one issue of The Bear Facts, per annum. We will use 
the Likert scale to assess their experience and benefits gained from the publication. An 
additional 'comments and suggestions for improvement section' will also be included. 
Registered service users who have received more than 4 issues of The Bear Facts since 
registering will be asked to fill out a further section, so that we are able to assess the long-term 
impact of the publication.

After funding 
ends

Sustaining The Bear Facts is continuing project and we work hard year on year to ensure it 
continues.
However, should we fail to secure the funding, the following course of action is likely over 
subsequent years;
In the short term, we would meet the cost of the production from our unrestricted reserves. 
However, in keeping with charity best practice, we aim to maintain these at a level equivalent 
to 6 months running costs and to not draw on them too often. 
In the longer term we would aim to deliver the same service at a reduced level, such as 
including less pages in the magazine and possibly less issues per annum.

However, we have been fortunate to receive funding to support the magazine in local areas, 
helping us to produce 82 issues to date. With the help of organisations such as yourselves, we 
aim to continue this for future years.

No of beneficiaries 34 No of volunteers 45

Expenditure
Operational costs: £655.52
Total cost UK wide per annum: £40,928
Total cost for UK per issue: £10,232

 

28



Production per issue: £1.46
Printing per issue: £0.43
Distribution per issue: £0.52
Total cost per issue, per registered service user: £2.41
Cost of 4 issues per registered service user: £9.64

34 registered service users x £9.64 = £327.76 per year
2 years = £655.52

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£0.00

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes We will submit approximately 400 applications in 2018 to charitable 
trusts and foundations, requesting that they support The Bear Facts 
in their local area.

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Primary Biliary Cholangitis is an autoimmune liver condition with no known cure and can 
affect children as well as adults.
The charity was established in 1996 and is the only organisation in the UK exclusively 
dedicated to providing support and information to those affected by PBC. They provide support 
through a helpline, quarterly newsletter and regional support groups, and have 34 members 
listed in the Holehirds Trust funds operating area. 

Organisation is mainly grant funded.

Each 20 page newsletter costs just under £2 to produce and issue, however it is emailed where 
possible and is available on their website - http://www.pbcfoundation.org.uk/Newsletter.htm, 
or they could send it bi-annually. 

The newsletter includes medical articles written by PBC specialists from the charities medical 
advisory board, members’ tips on symptom management as well as information on the latest 
PBC Foundation news.  
They have a Cumbrian contact and the people with this condition need the information,  
Recommend support but the funding can only be used to support people in the Westmorland 
area.
Request for 2 years funding but recommend one year.
Priority - People with a disability
Charitable objectives - To provide the services to beneficiaries

29



This page is intentionally left blank



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust 18/19 (Groups) Application no 20926
Project cost £115,000.00 Amount requested £5,000.00
Amount 
recommended

£1,500.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Shap Community CIO
Post Town PENRITH District Eden

Grant Priority 5 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

135

Aims of the 
group

Our overall aims and objectives are to support the people of Shap and the surrounding area by: 
• retaining existing services, 
• improving accessibility to public services and local information 
• supporting individuals who need access to specialist advice 
• promoting education, health and well-being in the community 
• encouraging equality and diversity
• enhancing the opportunities for community development through social interaction 
and rural regeneration. 
• promoting tourism, local heritage, arts and crafts
The Old Courthouse houses our Library Link, our Playgroup, and our Health Visitor service 
and is now also designated an official Visitor Information Point by Eden District Council. 
Within the last year we have opened a Gallery within which to promote local Arts & Crafts 
and to display outside exhibitions for the benefit of our community and to attract visitors. The 
building is hosted whenever open and provides a Drop-In for our community with free access 
to all. In addition, we run regular poetry, reading and music groups, and through the year hold 
art and writing workshops in association with organisations such as the Wordsworth Trust and 
Eden Valley Artistic Network, Kendal Windows on Art. Highlights Contemporary Craft Tour.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

6 No. of 
approved 
grants

5 Total Amount 
Awarded

£11096.00

Project Details
Project title Porch improvements to The Old Courthouse
Project detail We have been invited to make a full application to the LEADER Fells & Dales programme and 

are looking for match funding. Our project is to improve accessibility, visual prominence and 
energy efficiency at The Old Courthouse. We plan to;
add a glass/steel entrance porch to the main door with a graded access ramp from the forecourt, 
lower the floor at the south end of the building, provide a raised terrace at the front of the 
building

Need As The Old Courthouse is hosted whenever open and admission is free, it is the only place in 
Shap within which people can meet without necessarily spending money and therefore is much 
valued by those who use it as a drop-in and learning resource centre.  As the building is hosted 
whenever open, there is always somebody to talk to. 1419 people have used the building so far 
this financial year and income from their donations, art & craft sales and room hire cover our 
day-to-day running costs.

Disadvantage Despite being officially designated  as a Hub for around 5000 people, Shap parish itself suffers 
much from rural isolation.* (Ref)  Our local bus service runs only three days a week, a single 
return journey which gives Shap residents only 2 hours to access services, shop and meet 
friends in the nearest town ten miles away. The return taxi fare is £60.  The average income is 
£xxxx and many households are without use of a car while partners are at work, or have no 
personal transport at all.  As many residents are on low incomes, there is little spare money for 
socialisation and many are in fuel poverty.

Benefits The entrance porch will make us more visible to passers-by, improve energy efficiency within 
the central part of the building which will make our Reception Visitor Information Point and 
Gallery far more hospitable. It will also provide more display space to promote events. The 31



new porch will give level access to the building (currently two steps), and the ramp will enable 
safe wheelchair access to the main door from the car park. Lowering the floor at the south end 
will make the small meeting room fully accessible from inside and outside the building thus 
enabling us to promote it for room hire. Raising the outside terrace at the front of the building 
will provide a safe area above the level of manoeuvring traffic in the car park that can be used 
in conjunction with the beverage area for servicing outdoor events. These improvements will 
lead to increased visitor numbers, activities and room hire which will contribute to our 
sustainability.

Measure We will record visitor numbers and obtain feedback from users re the improvements. Although 
improving energy efficiency, heating bills may not be reduced as we hope to heat the whole 
building to a more comfortable standard. We would expect that increased energy efficiency 
combined with uniform floor level throughout will lead to an Increase in users, range of 
activities and room hire which we will monitor.

After funding 
ends

When this phase of work has been completed, we will be able to concentrate on running events 
and exhibitions at The Old Courthouse for our community and visitors, which will help to 
reduce social isolation for local residents whilst promoting our area to visitors.

No of beneficiaries 1394 No of volunteers 10

Expenditure
Operational costs: £5,000.00
Forecourt regrading (make sure slope fits legal 
requirements) to go to porch £12,000
Lowering Floor and utilities in the South Meeting Room, 
Lobby and Kitchenette.
Installation of an entrance porch
Installation of front terrace

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£9,620.00 £2120 from Shap Community Enterprise: £2500 from the Hadfield 
Trust: £5000 from the Foyle Foundation.

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes £92,000 from LEADER Fells & Dales: £3,380 from Frieda Scott 
C.T; £10,000 applied for from  Prince's Countryside Fund but panel 
is now deferred from June to late September hence this application 
and £5000 applied for from Tudor Trust.

Quotes Received Yes

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Registered charity who have the Old Court House in Shap.
They house Cumbria County Council Library Link, Shap Pre-School Playgroup and provide a 
Visitor Information Point for Eden District Tourism.  They are working to bring other services 
to the community.  There are different rooms available for hire.  Art exhibitions are held there 
and have space available for other displays. The building has WiFi access, computers and 
telephone for public use and also printing/photocopying facilities.

The building is owned by the CIO, and the management group meet monthly.
Rather than upgrade the building before transferring it to them, the County Council offered 
them the land behind the building as a means to generate funding to help to renovate the 
building. 
They are also trying to secure funds that will allow them to carry out improvements to The Old 
Courthouse and increase their potential to raise income from room hire, exhibitions etc.
The project would help with disability access.  
The amount requested is too large for this fund but would draw down other funding from 
Leader Fells & Dales

Recommend contribution if funds allow.  If awarded any funding would be paid out 
conditional on them receiving other match funding and securing the funding from Fells & 
Dales.
Priority - All age groups
Charitable objectives - to provide the facilities for beneficiaries

32



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust 18/19 (Groups) Application no 20942
Project cost £2,100.00 Amount requested £1,500.00
Amount 
recommended

£1,500.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Kendal Windows on Art (KWoA)
Post Town KENDAL District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 1 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

94

Aims of the 
group

KWoA began as a not for profit organisation, achieving charity status in 2003 and is run by its 
Trustee and Management Committee. Over the last 21 years, KWoA has successfully run 
regular programmes of arts activities and events in Cumbria.
One of the main aims of KWoA is to provide educational and cultural opportunities in the 
sphere of the arts. Whilst continuing to develop a diverse range of thought provoking artworks 
in public spaces, KWoA is keen to improve community access and engagement with creating 
and sharing relevant and innovative artwork through artist led workshops. KWoA provides a 
rolling programme of art projects and this flexibility helps KWoA to respond to the specific 
needs of community groups, young people, children and display venues.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

23 No. of 
approved 
grants

19 Total Amount 
Awarded

£39500.00

Project Details
Project title The Way I See It rural community project
Project detail The KWoA The Way I See It rural community project will enable children, their families and 

older neighbours in Crosscrake and Old Hutton rural areas can share their creative responses to 
living in a rural community. Through accessible community workshops facilitated by the 
KWoA creative team, community members of all ages will be able to share their thoughts 
across the generations about the advantages and challenges of living in rural isolated locations. 
As many of the participants are linked to farming through their families, their work or where 
they live, this exploration will include noting the similarities and differences in the different 
age groups in their individual views about the importance of farming in their communities, in 
the past, present and future. Participants of all ages will then work with KWoA to create 
collaborative artworks which incorporate everyone’s responses to the project discussions about 
living in a rural community. The artworks will be exhibited at venues within both communities 
and at NWA Junction 36 Rural Auction Centre so that the project reaches wider audiences 
including other Cumbrian farming communities.
Grant support is requested for community workshops Crosscrake and Old Hutton, Community 
engagement session at NWA Junction 36 and Workshop resources (see also Section 4 re 
budget).

Need Through community discussions with KWoA, young families in the Crosscrake community are 
very keen to support their children to be part of local creative community activities, involving 
grandparents too. They and their children would like to get to know their older neighbours 
better and share views about living in their rural community.
Crosscrake Primary School has kindly offered to provide a base for community activities in 
their community room as it is also keen to support community activities that benefit local 
children and their families. KWoA regular provides guest speakers for Cumbria’s network of 
Mothers Unions (MU) - many members are in their 80s/90s - and through these talks, 
Crosscrake MU members based at St Thomas’s community space near to the school are very 
interesting in being involved in intergenerational activities and having the chance to share their 
views, to be listened to and to listen to their younger neighbours. They are also enthusiastic 
about trying new art skills with the children! Meanwhile the children would like to share their 
digital art skills with their older neighbours.
Children and their families based at Old Hutton Primary School would also like to work with 

33



KWoA on intergenerational creative activities having seen about previous KWoA community 
projects. Older Old Hutton residents who are MU members are linked to an 
Crosscrake/Natland./Old Hutton MU local network and would like the opportunity to work 
with MU members based at Crosscrake. Both groups would like to share project news with 
Natland too.
At a KWoA project in Eden, NWA Junction 36 staff visitors discussed collaborating with 
KWoA. NWA Junction 36 is very interested that KWoA are planning to work with Crosscrake 
and Old Hutton communities exploring rural/farming issues so have kindly offered to exhibit 
the project’s collaborative artworks in one their busy Auction Halls’ large display space.

Disadvantage Rural isolation is a challenge for all the age groups in the Crosscrake and Old Hutton rural 
communities. With lack of regular public transport community, members rely on being able to 
drive and being able to afford to maintain reliable vehicles to access work, school, health care, 
leisure facilities etc. not always available near their homes. Lack of transport and access to 
social activities can lead to social isolation especially for older people.  Financial pressures of 
organising transport can cause stress especially for young families. Parents of young families 
can also feel socially isolated especially if they have given up or cut down on work hours to 
care for their families and don’t have easily accessible access to regular family friendly social 
activities. Cost of housing and lack of employment can also impact on local families where 
their young people want to stay in their communities when older.
Older people moving into these communities to retire can miss the interaction with their 
grandchildren and older residents where their children have moved for employment or 
affordable housing can also miss regular contact with their grandchildren.

Benefits Providing accessible activities which enable older and younger community members in the 
Crosscrake and Old Hutton rural areas, to work together, sharing views and creating 
collaborative artworks for exhibitions.

Valuing older people's contributions- giving older people the chance to inspire their younger 
neighbours.

Sharing valuable and interesting local history knowledge, memories and views linked to living 
in a rural community through intergenerational workshops and wider audiences through 
exhibitions and press coverage etc.

Improving self-esteem of children and older people - KWoA has seen in previous projects how 
having the opportunity to share ideas across the generations and showcase their work in busy 
public spaces has raises self-confidence for all participants.

Building sustainable partnerships across generations so that the children and their families, 
older people, older groups and the community venues involved can develop further ideas for 
intergenerational activities in the future.

Measure KWoA understands and values the importance of evaluation, not just at the end of a project but 
as an ongoing process throughout activities. This helps us to identify and meet community 
members' needs through flexible, responsive planning and delivery. We are working closely 
with communities to ensure our invitation to participate reaches their communities effectively 
and participant attendance figures will be noted for all activities.

We will be recording initial baseline of responses at the project start to measure against when 
we review project with participants at project end. We are keen to track how aims have been 
met, note participants' changes and sustainable community development etc. This will help us 
evaluate the impact of project activities and all findings will be collated in our KWoA project 
report to be sent to all funders following the end of project evaluation.

After funding 
ends

We will be working with community members and groups to strengthen connections across 
their communities as part of the sustainability planning that KWoA builds into all their 
projects.
We will be encouraging participants of all ages to take an active role in decision making 
throughout activities - helping with the design, development, delivery and evaluation of the 
project. We will be aiming to improve the participants' skills especially communication and 
empathy skills, through intergenerational/community element. This will also encourage 
friendship and respect whilst developing sustainable partnerships.

As in all KWoA projects, we will be maintaining contacts with project communities after the 
34



project has ended and always offer volunteer support if required, to help communities develop 
ideas for the future inspired by project partnerships, outcomes etc

No of beneficiaries 180 No of volunteers 12

Expenditure

Operational costs: £1,500.00
12 community workshops Crosscrake and Old Hutton @ 
£100 per session
Community engagement session at NWA Junction 36 
£100
Workshop resources £200

Other costs: 
Public Liability Insurance for workshops and exhibitions, 
travel, installation of exhibitions, exhibition resources

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£600.00 KWoA has agreed support of £600 for public liability insurance, 
travel costs, exhibition installation costs and exhibition resources

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Established in 1997, this small registered charity (no. 1097912) has previously delivered a 
series of inter-generational creative workshops and events around Kendal, as well as across 
other parts of South Lakeland. We have received good feedback from previous projects 
supported.

There are no regular paid staff, although artists do get paid a fee.

This project will encourage younger people to get to know their older neighbours better 
through the sharing of stories, memories and interests across the generations. The project will 
work to provide a range of creative opportunities to work together through intergenerational 
community workshops and events.  

Older people have already requested opportunities to engage more with young people. The 
social action project focuses on engaging with families, children and older people through a 
series of inter-generational events.

Benefits to the rural communities include an improved perception of young people, reduced 
isolation, a positive impact on wider society through the events. 

Recommend support
Priority – All age groups
Charitable objectives – To provide the services to beneficiaries  

35



This page is intentionally left blank



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust 18/19 (Groups) Application no 21009
Project cost £1,500.00 Amount requested £500.00
Amount 
recommended

£500.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Skelsmergh Bowling Club
Post Town KENDAL District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 6 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

94

Aims of the 
group

The purpose of the Skelsmergh Bowling Club (SBC) is to encourage social interaction and 
physical fitness in the Skelsmergh & Scalthwaiterigg parish community by means of regular 
meetings to play indoor bowling. Membership of SBC is open to residents of Skelsmergh & 
Scalthwaiterigg parish in the first instance, where residency is defined as ownership or rental 
of properties within the parish boundary, though applications for membership from interested 
persons not resident in the parish are sympathetically considered by the Management 
Committee in consultation with existing members.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

1 No. of 
approved 
grants

0 Total Amount 
Awarded

£0.00

Project Details
Project title Replacement of indoor bowling mats
Project detail The Skelsmergh Bowling Club's activities take place in the Skelsmergh Community Hall, 

including the indoor bowling itself. Mats are used to prevent damage to the floor of the hall, 
but the ones currently being used have now reached the end of their service life and must be 
replaced. The grant being applied for would be a contribution to the cost of replacement of two 
mats. For longevity, the Club proposes to buy medium-quality, medium-priced ones; as the 
attached quotations show, these are in the range £700 - 750 each. This is the basis for the 
costing of the project.

Need The Club has been in existence for 11 years, and membership has been and remains stable at 
about 30. This is clear evidence that the community wants the activities that the Club provides.

Disadvantage The members of the Club cannot be described as disadvantaged, but like many older people 
they face increasing isolation as they age, and the Club provides an opportunity to alleviate 
that, as above.

Benefits Provision of new bowling mats would make it possible to continue the club's activities for the 
foreseeable future, and to fulfil the aims outlined above. Failing that, there is nowhere else 
within the Skelsmergh & Scalthwaiterigg parish to host indoor bowling, and so the club would 
have to disband. The Club is one of the few communal activities for older people in the parish, 
and loss of it would entail one fewer opportunity for these people to socialise and to remain 
physically active.

Measure It is difficult to see how the benefits of Club membership might be measured, since alleviation 
of isolation and maintenance of physical fitness are difficult to quantify. The Club is, however, 
happy to provide reports of its activities and its membership level.

After funding 
ends

This is a one-off project. Purchase of replacement bowling mats will allow the Club to continue 
to function for the foreseeable future.

No of beneficiaries 30 No of volunteers 0

Expenditure

Operational costs: £0.00 Capital costs: £500.0037



The only operational cost is hire of the venue 
(Skelsmergh Community Hall). The rental for each 
meeting is covered by a contribution of £1.50 by each 
participant. Any surplus is added to Club reserves.

Two bowling mats @ 750 each = 1500. Existing grants 
total: 750. Contribution from Club reserves: 250. 
Funding applied for: 500.

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£750.00 Skelsmergh & Scalthwaiterigg Parish Council: £500.00; Cumbria 
County Council discretionary grant: £250.00

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes

Quotes Received Yes

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Skelsmergh is a small village, situated about 4 miles (6.4 km) north of Kendal, on the A6 road.
Volunteer ran constituted group who provide indoor bowling sessions to local residents. 
Application is for 2 new matts to play indoor bowles on.  2 quotes have been provided.
They have 30 members of the club who do not pay membership but pay per session.  The 
group hire the village hall for two hours each month. 
The group do a little bit of fundraising such as coffee mornings.  The members are mainly 
older residents and this activity provides an opportunity for them to all meet up socially. 
They asked a community member to complete this application form for them as none of the 
group were confident to complete it themselves.

Recommend support conditional on them obtaining a charitable dissolution on their 
constitution and receipt of satisfactory accounts.

Priority - older people
Charitable objectives - to provide the facilities to beneficiaries

38



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust 18/19 (Groups) Application no 21038
Project cost £1,295.00 Amount requested £1,000.00
Amount 
recommended

£1,000.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation Dignity in Dementia
Post Town ARNSIDE District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 4 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

Aims of the 
group

Dignity in Dementia seeks to ensure the dignity of people with dementia and their family 
carers is maintained by providing innovative support which help make their lives as normal 
and as positive as possible. We also work to reduce the stigma associated with dementia and 
support people with dementia to live at home for as long as possible. 
We do this by working with family carers and offering:
- Dignity in Dementia Care Programmes that combine practical and effective dementia care 
guidance with stress reduction strategies.
- Emotional Trigger Assessments which aim to find the triggers for challenging behaviours and 
identifies strategies that reduce/remove them. We currently use these processes to reduce 
repeat call-outs by Cumbria Police to incidents involving people with dementia. 
- Setting up and managing three dementia embracing community singing groups which offer 
an opportunity for people with dementia to stay connected to their local communities. Also the 
setting up of
Community Come Dancing sessions in Milnthorpe.
We also offer innovative and practical dementia care training to care organisations and carry 
out specific project work designed to improve the quality of life of individuals receiving health 
and social care services.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

14 No. of 
approved 
grants

9 Total Amount 
Awarded

£61470.00

Project Details
Project title Dignity in Dementia Care Course
Project detail We would like to run a free to attend 8 hour Dignity in Dementia care programme (over 4 

weeks) in Kendal for family carers supporting a spouse/relative with dementia.  Family carers 
tell us that when a diagnosis is given they are generally left to get by with very little help and 
support and therefore they often feel engulfed by the enormity of their situation and experience 
overwhelming feelings of hopelessness and fear about the future.  Our programme is designed 
to help them understand that it is possible, with the right support, for the person with dementia 
to continue to have a good quality of life and experience joy and contentment. 
It combines practical, effective and easy-to-use dementia care guidance, with simple stress 
reduction strategies and includes.

Our programme covers:
• What is dementia  
• The importance of connecting to the feelings of the person with dementia 
• Communicating effectively & building trust
• The importance of comfort, how to detect pain and how dementia can affect vision
• Challenging behaviour and how to avoid it
• The importance of meaningful occupation and the perils of boredom
• Carers relaxation

After the course has been completed we will bring attendees back together a month later to 
enable them to ask questions and gain additional support from the Dignity in Dementia staff 
and other attendees.

39



Need Over the past year we have run Dignity in Dementia Care courses in Milnthorpe, Grange over 
Sands and Windermere.  It has been a number of years since we last ran one in Kendal and 
partner organisations such as South Lakes Carers, Age UK and the South Lakes Memory 
Clinic have told us that they have family carers that they will refer.  Additionally during our 
police work we have met family members located in and around Kendal who have told us that 
they will attend should a Kendal course take place.  We also take phone calls from individuals 
who ask about a Kendal course.

Disadvantage We know first hand from our work with family carers supporting a relative/spouse with 
dementia, as well as from academic research, that carers generally struggle with the progressive 
nature of dementia. As well as memory loss, individuals are likely to experience 
communication and reasoning problems, difficulty with organisation and planning and changes 
in personality and mood. Family carers tell us that when a diagnosis is given they are generally 
left to get by with no practical support or training.  People who haven’t been carers are 
suddenly thrust into the role and a great many struggle with the demands this places on them.  
As their relatives dementia progresses, so too does their level of dependency and both the carer 
and person with dementia can experience overwhelming feelings of hopelessness and fear. The 
person with dementia can quickly lose confidence and stop trying to participate in ways they 
have previously. This can lead to them losing their abilities earlier than would otherwise 
happen. As they then become more reliant upon support in all aspects of their life, they are 
likely to experience a profound loss of autonomy and sense of identity. These feelings may 
then cause them to display possible aggressive behaviours which can be labelled as 
challenging. They may also become withdrawn, apathetic, depressed and isolated.  

Family carers can also experience a range of negative feelings, such as fear, anger, frustration, 
guilt, loneliness and isolation. The escalating personal demands placed on them (emotional, 
physical, social and financial) can lead to depression and ill health. They too can lose 
confidence and stop accessing community groups due to embarrassment and the negative 
stigma often associated with dementia.

Benefits Participants to the family carers programme will benefit from:
• Increased knowledge, confidence and skills to deliver best practice dementia care to 
their spouse/relative
• Reduced social isolation as they meet new people and form strong bonds and friendships with 
individuals going through a similar experiences.
• Enhanced confidence to reconnect with local groups and friendship groups they may 
have stopped accessing.
• Improved personal wellbeing and reduced incidence of carer breakdown as the person with 
dementia they support is more content and experiences an improved quality of life and greater 
wellbeing.
• Reduced number of visits to their GP
• Person with dementia is able to stay at home and in their community for longer
• A personal copy of the Dignity in Dementia Guide for family carers.

Measure We will give out a pre-course questionnaire to all programme participants. This will enable us 
to gather base line information relating to the family carer and the person with dementia. We 
will ask participants to complete the same questionnaire at the end of the programme and 
would hope to see positive movement when we compare the results. Additionally we will carry 
out anonymised case studies where they are appropriate and permission is given. We will use 
this information, together with the information provided in an end of course evaluation, to 
produce a course report. We anticipate this will document the potential benefits described.

After funding 
ends

Dignity in Dementia currently has a bid in for 3 years funding to The Big Lottery to Reframe 
Dementia across Cumbria.  Whilst the bid covers a range of areas of work, it includes running 
4 Dignity in Dementia care courses across the South Lakes area annually.  Therefore if 
successful we will be able to run courses on an ongoing basis for the foreseeable future.

No of beneficiaries 15 No of volunteers 10

Expenditure
Staff costs: £800.00
2 staff x 3 hours (including travel time and setting up and 
clearing away) x £25 per hour x 5 sessions

Travel costs at £10 x 5 journeys (Arnside to Kendal 
return)

Other costs: £0.00
Course administration £15 x 4 hours
15 x Dignity in Dementia Guides at £4 each

40



Operational costs: £175.00
Room hire x 5 sessions x £25
Refreshments £10 per session

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£295.00 Dignity in Dementia will cover administration and marketing costs 
plus provide the Guides

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Community Interest company which was founded in 2014.
The project is a good project and supports people living with dementia and their carers.  The 
project area fits this fund as it will be ran in Kendal
The organisation were awarded a contract for 2 years to train police officers in Dementia 
awareness and how to behave and talk to people living with Dementia.

The organisation work with other groups such as South Lakes Carers and Age UK.

With this application they would like to offer free of charge 4 x 2 hour sessions to carers of 
people living with Dementia.  They work with the carers and hold the training time to best suit 
them.  They have previously ran these courses in other areas and they have been well received.  
They say they are constantly asked to provide the training in different areas but of course this 
has a cost which some carers cannot afford.

Recommend support

Priority - people with a disability
Charitable objectives - To relieve beneficiaries who are in conditions of need, hardship or 
distress

41



This page is intentionally left blank



Grants Application 

Application Details
Fund Holehird Trust 18/19 (Groups) Application no 21042a
Project cost £10,500.00 Amount requested £5,000.00
Amount 
recommended

£1,500.00 Grants Officer Ellen Clements

Applicant Details
Organisation High Wray Village Hall
Post Town AMBLESIDE District South Lakeland

Grant Priority 5 Index of Multiple 
Deprivation

70

Aims of the 
group

The Village Hall is a registered charity and the function of the Committee is to maintain and 
manage the hall as a community resource for the villages of High Wray and Low Wray and the 
surrounding area. Our main focus is to ensure the hall is a building that is well-equipped, clean 
and comfortable to use. We also have a role in raising income, mainly from hire of the hall to 
village, parish and church groups, local residents and as a learning/meeting venue. The hall is 
also let for short-term use as a camping barn for small groups and families.

Previous Funding Details
No. of grant 
applications

2 No. of 
approved 
grants

0 Total Amount 
Awarded

£0.00

Project Details
Project title Kitchen refurbishment
Project detail Replace the existing dilapidated kitchen as phase 2 of our 4-phase refurbishment project. (See 

below for breakdown of phases)
Phase 2: To provide a safe, hygienic and pleasant environment in a well-equipped kitchen 
suitable for the needs of hall users.
Over recent years a number of issues with the existing kitchen has become apparent. The 
electricity supply to the water heater needs re-locating, the water heater itself needs replacing, 
to make safer access to hot water for washing dishes. 
The cooker, storage cupboards and worktops need replacing and we need a new microwave and 
fridge. The existing appliances are donated second-hand items which are at least 20 years old.

Need The views of the residents are represented by High Wray Village Hall Committee, they have 
recorded the need for renovations in their minutes taken over more than a decade. As can be 
seen from the attached photos there are numerous areas which need attention. Residents have 
listed the problems below.
1. Water heater needs replacement, 
2. Leaking pipe work
3. Rear wall needs re-plastering
4. Old fireplace needs removing 
5. Electric supply needs re-positioning
6. Cooker elements are breaking down
7. Working surfaces need to be provided on which to boil a kettle and make beverages
8. More sockets and improved electric points required
Evidence of need attached;
       Committee meetings minutes
       Photographs
       Receipt for oven element

Disadvantage High and Low Wray are small hamlets with around 20 permanent residences and 10 
households occupied for holidays. Residents include farmers, working families with school 
children, single occupants, people with physical disabilities, and several people over 70 years 
of age. There is no shop nor café, no public house, church nor other potential meeting place. 
Opportunities for the community to come together are limited and the village hall is the only 
communal space we have. For this reason, we are determined to make this valuable asset work 
for our community, by making it a place people want to frequent.
In a small rural community like ours, isolation and loneliness, especially for the elderly and 

43



those living alone is a concerning and on-going problem. 
Difficulties also arise when people become ill or unable to drive. 
Public transport is non-existent, the nearest bus stop is 1.5 miles away on the B5286 where 
there is an infrequent bus service.
There is no mains gas or sewage, most households use a mixture of electricity, LPG, oil, wood 
and coal for their domestic heating and cooking. All have septic tanks for handling effluent.
Broadband speeds are very poor and rarely reach even the minimum suggested as being 
essential by the authorities.

Benefits The kitchen area will become a safe pleasant environment in which to prepare food and drinks 
during events and social gatherings. 
There will be a hygienic benefit in being easier to clean and a smarter, fresh appearance will 
encourage all users to maintain a higher standard of cleanliness.
By re-aligning the electric sockets to above floor level, the kitchen area will become a safer 
place for working when children are present and will help elderly people during social coffee 
mornings.
Renovations will make the hall generally a much more comfortable and inviting venue, people 
will want to use it more and there will be a natural increase in hall usage which will help with 
the cash flow of the hall’s finances for the maintenance of this beautiful old building.

Measure We will display before and after photos at a coffee morning and plan to invite comments from 
all residents and report the results in our local parish magazine and regional newspaper.
The improvements will be advertised to encourage more local uses for classes, both active and 
educational, social events and meetings.
We will monitor usage figures and changes will be recorded in the Committee’s minutes.

After funding 
ends

This second phase of our 4-phase renovation project is a one-off.
Phase 1   
Heating: Completed April 2018 with finance from Lake District Community's fund £3000 and 
Claife Parish Council £500 plus our own fund raising events £633.86
Phase 2 
Autumn 2018: Kitchen renovation, 
Spring 2019 we plan to progress to:- 
Phase 3: 
The improvement and replacement of the washing and shower facilities to make them 
disabled/wheelchair friendly.
Phase 4:
Winter 2020
Replacement of stage curtains with a suitable alternative.
Each of the attached kitchen renovation quotes needs some additional items and work, which 
brings their totals too slightly over the amount we are currently seeking, however we intend to 
fund any overspend using the Hall’s own financing.

No of beneficiaries 75100 No of volunteers 5

Expenditure

Capital costs: £5,000.00
Cost of Kitchen Units   £4102.80
Installation and labour      £4665
Water heater components and accessories  £247.25
Labour for Fitting of water heater ...amount at present 
unknown

Income
Amount of 
funding raised so 
far

£743.00 In house fundraising : BBQ & Coffee morning £300 Individual 
Donations £200 Sale of donated Bicycle £173 Chair Hire Donations 
£70  Total £743

Applying 
Elsewhere

Yes Cumbria County Council Community Grants  £1000   Frieda Scott 
Trust £3500

Quotes Received Yes

Assessment
Assessor’s 
comments 

Registered charity run by volunteers and do not have any paid staff.
The village hall mainly covers High Wray and Low Wray between Hawkshead and Ambleside. 

44



The building is a lovely stone built building with a slate roof and can also be hired as a 
camping barn. Wray Castle is nearby and the National Trust High Wray base camp.
This is a 4 phase refurbishment and the kitchen units are phase 2. 
Two quotes have been provided. 
Their latest accounts show income of £2,633.16 and expenditure of £1,188.63.  They have 
£14,486 in their account, this is for the upgrade of the building including the 3 remaining 
phases to complete. 
Photographs provided show a very basic kitchen with a vintage water heater and a cold tap. 
The cooker and kitchen units are old and cupboard space is very limited. 
This is the only community space for the villagers to use.

Recommend some support and the remaining amount requested will go to one of our other 
funds to help towards the project costs.

Priority - All age groups
Charitable objectives - To provide the facilities to beneficiaries.

45



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

47

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 CUMBRIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AGREEMENT 2017-20 FINANCIAL STATEMENT and DISTRIBUTIONS 2018-19
	HOLEHIRD - Income & Expenditure Account for Meeting 21.09.18
	HOLEHIRD - Balance Sheet for Meeting 21.09.18
	HOLEHIRD - Notes to the Accounts for Meeting 21.09.18
	HOLEHIRD - Schedule of Grants Paid for Meeting 21.09.18

	6 GRANT APPLICATIONS
	20924 The PBC Foundation
	20926 Shap Community CIO
	20942 KWOA
	21009 Skelsmergh Bowling Club
	21038 Dignity in Dementia
	21042 High Wray Village Hall

	8 PROPERTY MATTERS

